
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
B. ROLL CALL 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement) 
 none 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. March 11, 2024  Study Session Meeting Minutes (Summer Camp Update) 
2. March 11, 2024 Meeting Minutes 

 
F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

None 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

None 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.   
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 

 
The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email to:  
councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior 
to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. Please note, when 
submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and 
address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

None 
K. CONSENT AGENDA (1 voice vote required) 

1.  Heman Park - Memorial Fountain Restoration 
2.  Police Department Camera Surveillance Equipment Purchase (Eastgate Park) 
3.  FY2023 Supplemental Agreement (CDBG) 

 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT –  (voice vote on each item as needed) 

1.  City Manager Updates 
2.  EDRST Applications 

 
M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  (2nd and 3rd readings – roll call vote required) 

None 
 

N. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions   (voice vote required)  

None 
Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 
 None 
  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, March 25, 2024 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION (roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 

 
S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
Posted March 22, 2024 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


March 11, 2024 - Study Session Minutes       Page 1 of 4 

STUDY SESSION 
Summer Camp Update 
CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 

6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 
Monday, March 11 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

AGENDA 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Study Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, March 11, 2024, Mayor
Terry Crow, called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:
Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember Aleta Klein 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales; (excused) 
Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson; (excused) 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr., and 
Interim Director of Public Works & Recreation, Darin Girdler.   

2. CHANGES TO THE REGULAR AGENDA
Councilmember Clay asked that Items K (1); Underwriter Engagement Letter for potential issuance
of Certificates of Participation (COPS), and K (2); Rating Study for Certificates of Participation, be
moved from the Consent Agenda to the City Manager's Report.

3. SUMMER CAMP UPDATE
Mr. Rose stated this update is being provided to allow Council with an opportunity to provide input
and guidance on the City's future Summer Camp Program. And with the assistance of the School
District and Washington University, something he would like to incorporate into the program is a
tutoring component.  So tonight, Mr. Girdler has been asked to provide Council with information on
the previous camp's structure and his objectives moving forward.

Mr. Girdler noted that due to staffing and facility issues the City will be unable to conduct Summer 
Camp this year. 

Summer Camp 2019 
Eight weekly themes from June through July. 

• Welcome to Camp
• Salute to our Heroes
• Blinded me With Science
• Time Travelers
• Welcome to the Jungle
• Body Movin'
• Movie Mania
• So Long Summer

E - 1 - 1



 

March 11, 2024 - Study Session Minutes             Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Fees 
1st through 6th Grade 
 Resident:  $60.00 
 Non-Resident:  $80.00 

 
7th through 8th Grade 
 Resident:  $70.00 
 Non-Resident:  $92.00 

 
Camp B4 or After 
 Resident:  $24.00 
 Non-Resident:  $31.00 

 
Camp B4 or After 
 Resident:  $48.00 
 Non-Resident:  $62.00 

 
Brochure 
 

 
 
Weekly Activities 

• Lunch 
• Swimming 
• Field Trips 
• Games 
• Crafts 

 
Activity Bottom Line Report - 2019 
Description   Enrolled  Total Fees 
TAPS   54   $3,043.00  8-week period 
Day Camp   308   $14,665.00  8-week period 
Camp B4 & After  122   $1,890.00  8-week period 
Camp B4 & After  9   $272.00  8-week period 
Camp After   31   $666.75  4-week period  
 

E - 1 - 2



 

March 11, 2024 - Study Session Minutes             Page 3 of 4 
 

The Future of Summer Camp 
Mr. Girdler stated staff is excited about 2025 when the facility is fully up and running.  He stated the 
hope is that the Department will be able to collaborate with the school and other potential partners, to 
enhance the curriculum and expand the program's educational component. 
 
Mr. Rose then asked Council for directions on the following: 

1. Initiating a conversation with the School District and Washington University to examine this 
program and make recommendations, and 

2. Allowing individuals and students participating in tutoring services to have free access to the 
pool and Centennial Commons 

 
Councilmember Clay stated he is excited to hear that this program is coming back and that it will 
include collaborations with the School District and Washington University.  He stated while he does not 
know if the District was running its summer program in 2019, it has been an advent for the last three 
years.  So, he would think that part of those conversations should explore whether they intend to 
continue this program, and if so, how their program; which is purely academic, could mesh with ours.  
Councilmember Clay stated although he would be curious about the costs associated with both the 
camp and inventive program, he would like to see staff proceed with these conversations.  
 
Councilmember Fuller asked if any consideration had been given to a scholarship fund for residents?  
Mr. Rose stated while he thinks that would be a good idea, he is unaware of whether such a fund 
existed in the past.  However, staff can conduct some research to find out the answer. 
 Councilmember Fuller stated if there are no limitations on bringing in another university, he 
would be happy to work with staff to discuss this with the Education or Special Ed Departments at St. 
Louis University, who are always looking for outreach opportunities.  He stated a lot of the students are 
willing to volunteer because they need curriculum hours, and this kind of program is ripe for that sort of 
thing.   
 
Councilmember McMahon stated on average, the 2019 camp only had about 45 campers a week when 
there seem to be spots for over 150 kids per week.  Going forward, are you looking to have enough 
capacity and staffing to service 150 kids?  Mr. Rose stated initially, the plan is to conduct a pilot 
program to determine how much interest there is.   That will probably be limited to 50 students, and if it 
is successful, expanded the following year.   
 Councilmember McMahon stated he thinks the District's program; which now consists of field 
trips and more engaging activities runs from June to the 4th of July.  So, if you decide to add the 
tutoring component consideration will have to be given to where that staff will come from.  You might 
find out that the teachers who volunteered for the District's program need that time between July and 
August to get ready for the next academic year or simply want a break. 
Councilmember Klein asked if the tutoring classes would be open to kids outside of the camp program?  
Mr. Rose stated initially it will be limited to students participating in the Summer Camp, but the hope is 
that it can be expanded to everyone.  He stated part of that depends on the number of teachers and 
students who are willing to volunteer as tutors.  So, there are a number of unknowns. 
 Councilmember Klein stated she likes the idea of an incentive program, and at some point, it 
might be nice to expand it to kids outside of the summer program.  However, that would probably 
precipitate the need for some kind of guidelines to make sure the incentive correlates with their efforts.   
 
Mayor Crow stated his kids attended Summer Camp every year, and from his perspective there always 
seemed to be more than 35 kids.  So, in an attempt to satisfy that perception, he has some questions 
that he understands staff may not have the immediate answers to, but probably need to be resolved. 
 
Q.  Has the Summer Camp attendance declined? 
Q.  Is there any information about the number of residents who participated in the camp? 
Q.  What are the enrollment numbers for the School District's Program? 

E - 1 - 3



 

March 11, 2024 - Study Session Minutes             Page 4 of 4 
 

Q.  Can someone walk me through the options that were examined to make the determination 
that the City was not in the position to conduct Summer Camp this year? 
 
Mr. Rose stated he had discussions with Mr. Girdler about whether the City had the facilities and 
staffing necessary to implement an effective program.  And what he learned is that it was unlikely that 
the facilities would be available in time to conduct camp in 2024.  He stated this unavailability is a result 
of the floods and the City's desire to be reimbursed by FEMA prior to advancing funds for the needed 
repairs.   
 
Councilmember Clay stated he's also curious to know if there has been a decline, and if so, what might 
have precipitated it.  Because while he understands that this was some time ago, Summer Camp was 
his first job, and at that time it was busting at the seams, with a waiting list.    
 
Councilmember Fuller posed the following questions to Mr. Rose: 
Q.  Are you anticipating that staff will be volunteers rather than salaried employees?   
A.  No, the intent is to compensate staff.  However, there will be discussions with the School District 
and universities to determine whether any teachers and students are willing to volunteer. 
Q.  Is it safe to assume that the Director of Recreation will play a significant role in this planning 
process? 
A.  Absolutely. 
 
Mayor Crow stated while Councilmember Smotherson had to leave, he may have a few questions for 
staff at a later time.  
 
4. ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor Crow thanked Mr. Girdler for his presentation and adjourned the Study Session at 6:20 p.m. 
 
Kena Dean / lr 
Acting City Clerk 

 

E - 1 - 4



 

March 11, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                      Page 1 of 9 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

A.  MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, March 11, 2024, 
Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 
B. ROLL CALL 

In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:  
   Councilmember Stacy Clay 
   Councilmember Aleta Klein 
   Councilmember Steven McMahon 
   Councilmember Jeffrey Hales; (excused) 
 `  Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
   Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson; (arrives at 6:36 p.m.) 
    
Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose, City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr., and 
Director of Finance, Keith Cole. 
 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Mayor Crow noted that during the Study Session, Councilmember Clay had asked that Items K 
(1); Underwriter Engagement Letter for potential issuance of Certificates of Participation 
(COPS), and K (2); Rating Study for Certificates of Participation, be moved from the Consent 
Agenda to the City Manager's Report.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Klein and 
carried unanimously. 

 
Councilmember McMahon moved to approve the Agenda as amended, it was seconded by 
Councilmember Fuller, and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement) 

None 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. February 26, 2024, Study Session Meeting Minutes (Community Survey Results); were 
moved by Councilmember Klein, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the 
motion carried unanimously; with the exception of Mayor Crow. 

2. February 26, 2024, Meeting Minutes were moved by Councilmember Fuller, it was seconded 
by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously; with the exception of 
Mayor Crow. 
 

F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1. Larry Zelenovich is nominated for reappointment to the Traffic Commission by 

Councilmember Dennis Fuller, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 

63130 
Monday, March 11, 2024 

  

E - 2 - 1



 

March 11, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                      Page 2 of 9 
 

 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Grace Fitter was sworn into the Arts and Letters Commission on March 5th in the clerk’s 
office. 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
Procedures for submitting comments for Citizen Participation and Public Hearings:  
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.  
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 
 
Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  Comments may be sent 
via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  
Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official 
record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
 
Please note that when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also note 
whether your comment is on an agenda or a non-agenda item.  If a name and address are not provided, the comment 
will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
Citizen Comments 
Chris Blumenhurst, 6615 Waterman Avenue, U City, MO 
6826 Chamberlain Court Avenue, which was built in 1873, making it the oldest home in the 
community.  So, the history of this home needs to be known and cherished by all.  He stated as 
the President of the Sutter Meyer Society's Board of Directors, he would like to acknowledge all 
of the other members in attendance whose support has helped to maintain this home for the last 
15 years.  The Board welcomes visitors to the Sutter Meyer Farmhouse and strives to educate 
and expose students to U City's diverse history through curriculum, tours, and activities.   
 Sutter Meyer is also part of a larger organization called Historic St. Louis which represents 
35 historical sites in the surrounding area.  Mr. Blumenhurst stated the Sutter Meyer Home is a 
landmark that needs to be supported by citizens, and with the City's assistance the Board 
believes they can make this important landmark even more meaningful.   
 
Diane Davenport, 784 Yale Avenue, U City, MO  
Ms. Davenport stated she is a very proud Board member of the Sutter Meyer House and would 
invite everyone to visit and see the progress they have made.  
 
Jerrold Tiers, 7345 Chamberlain, U City, MO 
Mr. Tiers stated at the last Council meeting Mr. Sullivan complained that the City was not doing 
anything to fill vacant storefronts in The Loop.  And while Council's follow-up to those comments 
noted that the City could not force landlords to rent out these spaces, in his opinion, that is not 
really the point.  Because even though the City can't force landlords to take action, it can 
discourage this behavior by offering incentives or other measures associated with filling vacant 
properties.   

• The City can reach out to landlords to find out why a space is not being rented.  And if it turns 
out that they believe the City is creating problems that inhibit renting, work to correct the 
problem.   

•  Development is another way to encourage more rentals. Development begets more 
development, and businesses follow development to service that development.  One thing is 
certain, landlords will rent space if the area is popular and there is a demand for rental space.  
Demand feeds on itself, but it needs a starting point.   

 
For instance, the new apartment building is one potential driver for Loop businesses.  And 
although the drive-in/drive-out drive may not generate much foot traffic, it has the potential to 
bring a lot of prospective customers to Delmar.     
And the hotel that was proposed several years ago could be an even better stimulus.  Hotel 
guests are natural customers for nearby restaurants.   
   

E - 2 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

March 11, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                      Page 3 of 9 
 

Of course, the area needs to be perceived as safe.  U City has the reputation of being 
where you go to get shot, which is certainly unfair since the Grove is still reasonably popular 
despite its two or three recent shootings.  So, a more visible foot patrol could go a long way 
towards changing perceptions about The Loop.   
   Mr. Tiers stated no area is exempt from change.  Popular places need to be reinvented 
from time to time to stay relevant.  U City was lucky to have Joe Edwards to do its reinventing in 
the 1970s when Delmar was mostly boarded up with plywood.  But now it is your turn to reinvent 
The Loop.  Other municipalities have done just that, and you can talk to them for ideas.  The U 
City Loop is the signature business district for U City, so the question you should be asking 
yourself is; does this administration care enough to make The Loop a priority and put some 
serious time and work into rejuvenating it?   

 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

None 
J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

None 
K. CONSENT AGENDA - (1 voice vote required) 

1. Stifel - Underwriter Engagement Letter for potential issuance of Certificates of Participation 
(COPS) - (moved to City Manager's Report) 

2. Rating Study for Certificates of Participation - (moved to City Manager's Report) 
3. Fund Transfer - Central Garage (Fleet) 
4. Millar Park Baseball Field Improvements 

 
Councilmember McMahon moved to approve Items 3 and 4 of the Consent Agenda, it was 
seconded by Councilmember Fuller and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – (voice vote on each item as needed) 
1. Stifel - Underwriter Engagement Letter for potential issuance of Certificates of Participation 

(COPS) 
Mr. Rose stated staff is recommending that Council consider using Stifel as the underwriter 
for the Letter of Engagement for issuance of the Certificates of Participation.   
 

Mr. Cole stated the issuance of these Certificates of Participation will be used to fund the Police 
Annex and Trinity Renovation projects. 
 
Councilmember Clay stated while he thinks many are familiar with bond issues as a mode of 
financing capital projects, the use of COPS may not be as familiar.  So, for the benefit of residents, 
he would like staff to walk through what COPS are; the City's role; the advantages, and the 
disadvantages when pursuing this particular mechanism. 
 
Mr. Cole stated COPS is a lease-back agreement where the City leases the asset; in this case, the 
buildings, from the bank, and financing is secured by lease payments rather than debt interest.  
The bank maintains the title to the asset until the final payment is made.  Once that final payment is 
made, the leased property is converted back to the City.  

•  COPS are repaid with annual appropriations approved by Council.  General Obligation 
Bonds are backed by the City's credit and are typically repaid with property taxes.   

•  COPS provide flexibility in the structuring of payments.  Bonds have a 20-year max in the 
structuring of payments.  COPS provide flexibility and allow you to extend the payment 
period up to 25 or 30 years.   

•  COPS do not require voter approval.  Bonds require 4/7ths or 2/3rds approval depending on 
the election cycle and the month it is being held.   

•  Bonds are funded through property taxes.  COPS are funded by various revenue sources, 
i.e., the general fund, capital improvement fund, sales tax fund, et cetera. 

 

E - 2 - 3



 

March 11, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                      Page 4 of 9 
 

Mr. Rose stated General Obligation Bonds typically result in an increase in property taxes to retire 
the debt.  However, the advantage of utilizing COPS is the ability to use existing revenue streams 
so that there is no increase to the residents of U City.  

 
Mayor Crow stated he does not think either of these options has been utilized since 2008 when the 
General Obligation Bond for the parking garage retired. 
 
Councilmember Clay posed the following questions to Mr. Cole: 
Q.  Is this the crux of the proposal; that the City will be leasing the buildings scheduled for 
renovation to the bank, the bank holds them for collateral, and once the certificates are paid 
off ownership reverts to the City? 
A.  That is correct. 
Q.  Plus, the repayment of COPS is more flexible than a bond and it has no potential tax 
implications for residents? 
A.  That's my understanding. 
Q.  Has staff identified any potential revenue sources for repaying the COPS? 
A.  Yes, we are looking at using the capital improvement sales tax fund, public safety sales tax 
fund, and the general fund. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson posed the following questions to Mr. Rose: 
Q.  Are the park funds being considered as a potential revenue source? 
A.  At this point it has not been included.  However, it is an option that I intend to explore with the 
City Attorney since the police are required to secure the City's parks.  It's a policy decision that 
ultimately will have to be made by Council. 
Q.  Is the TIF financing which gets distributed into the general fund being considered as a 
potential revenue source?  
A.   Yes. 
Q.  Is it the City's intent to use TIF monies to repay this debt? 
A.  TIF monies are not delineated as a separate fund; they just go straight into the general fund. 
 
Mayor Crow asked if the rates for both instruments were relatively the same? Mr. Cole stated that 
he could provide the rates after tonight's meeting. 
 
Councilmember Klein moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the 
motion carried unanimously, with the exception of Councilmember Smotherson. 
 

2. Rating Study for Certificates of Participation  
Mr. Rose stated staff is recommending that Council consider a Rating Study for the 
Certificates of Participation. 
 

Councilmember Klein moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the 
motion carried unanimously. 

 
3. City Manager Updates 

Police Annex and Court Trinity Building 
The bid package for this project was released on February 27th, and staff anticipates 
receiving all of the bids by April 9th.  If everything goes as planned, Mr. Rose stated the 
intent is to present Council with a bid for this construction at the May 13th meeting. 
    The Trinity Building includes a multipurpose room that will primarily be used for court 
proceedings, court personnel, and all of its operations.  It will not be used for the Council's 
chambers, as erroneously reported by the media, and at this point, no determination has 
been made as to its location. 

E - 2 - 4



 

March 11, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                      Page 5 of 9 
 

 
New Code Compliance Officer 
The Citizen's Satisfaction Survey highlighted the need for more attention on the City's 
commercial areas to ensure their compliance with the Code.  As a result, a new Code 
Compliance Officer has been hired to focus on this area and is scheduled to start today.  
  

4. Second Quarter Financial Report 
Mr. Cole provided Council with a presentation on the Second Quarter Financial 
Report, through December 31, 2003. 
 

General Fund - Revenues 
Adjusted Budget    $25,655,485 
YTD Actual     $10,990,771 
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget  42.8% 
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
the same quarter of FY2023   $136,945 
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in Sales & Use Tax Revenue of roughly $84,000 or 2.9%.  This increase is mainly 

due to an increase in Local Use, St. Louis County Pool, and Fire Sales taxes. 
 Increase in Gross Receipts Tax of roughly $88,000, or 3.6%.  This increase is due to an 

increase in Electric and Natural Gas during November and December.    
 Increase in Services Charges of roughly $355,000, or 82.0%.  This increase is mainly from 

collecting $286,000 from Ambulance Services and $85,000 from Weed & Debris bills. 
 Increase in Interest Revenue of roughly $87,600, or 424.5%.  This increase is due to 

favorable market conditions in the 2nd Quarter. 
 Increase in Municipal Court & Parking of roughly $58,800, or 25.4%. This increase is due to 

the collection of Parking Fines. 
 Increase in Other Revenue of roughly $55,100, or 35.9%.  This increase is due to receiving 

funds from an Opioid Settlement and a Surplus Distribution from SLAIT. 
 Decrease in Grants of roughly $362,000, or (99.3%).  This decrease is due to the closure of 

Safer Grant in FY23.  
 Decrease in Inspection Fees & Permits of roughly $322,000, or (45.3%).  This decrease is 

associated with Building & Zoning permits. 
 
Overall revenues as a percent of budget show an increase of 4.6% when compared to the same 
quarter of FY23. 
 
General Fund - Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget     $29,023,129 
YTD Actual      $14,146,704 
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   48.7% 
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
the same quarter of FY2023    $(607,344) 
 
Key Points: 
 Decrease in expenditures for Public Works and Parks & Recreation Capital Outlay of 

roughly $2,826,545.  This is mainly due to the emergency purchase of vehicles and 
equipment related to the flood that occurred in the 1st Quarter of FY2023. 

 Increase in expenditures for the Police Department of roughly $438,000, or 10.4%. Increase 
mainly due to Salaries/Wages, Maintenance Contracts, Technology Services, and Staff 
Training. 

 Increase in expenditures for Facilities Maintenance of roughly $154,000, or 34.8%. Increase 
mainly due to Building/Equipment Maintenance, and Maintenance Contracts. 
 

E - 2 - 5



 

March 11, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                      Page 6 of 9 
 

 Increase in expenditures for Planning & Development of roughly 319,000, or 42.1%. 
Increase mainly due to Professional Services and Maintenance Contracts. 

 Increase in expenditures for Parks & Recreation-Parks Maintenance of roughly $305,000, or 
38.0%. Increase mainly due to Maintenance Contracts and Disaster & Storm Expenses. 

 Increase in expenditures for Parks & Recreation of roughly $244,000, or 204.2%. Increase 
is mainly due to a contract with Midwest Pool Mgmt, Electricity in Aquatics, Part-time 
Salaries, and Electricity at Centennial Commons. 

 Increase in expenditures for the City Manager’s Office of roughly $362,000, or 130.2%.  
Increase mainly due to Professional and Legal Services.    

 
Overall, the expenditures as a percent of budget increased by 3.3% when compared to the same 
quarter of FY2023. 
 
Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Revenues 
Adjusted Budget     $2,801,200  
YTD Actual      $958,135  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   34.2%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2023    $70,161  
 
Key Points: 
 Sales Tax revenue increased roughly $70,122 or 7.9% during the 2nd Quarter of FY2024, 

compared to the same quarter of FY23. 
 
Overall revenues as a percent of budget show an increase of 2.0% when compared to the same 
quarter of FY23. 

 
 Note:  Revenue is generated from pooled sales tax from other cities in the county and 

is based on per capita.    
 
Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget     $1,790,337  
YTD Actual      $2,209,294  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   123.4%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
the same quarter of FY2023    $2,133,264  
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in expenditures mainly from the Asphalt Overlay Program that occurred in the 2nd 

Quarter of FY2023.  
  
Overall, the expenditures as a percent of budget increased by 120.2% when compared to the 
same quarter of FY2023. 
 
Park & Stormwater Sales Tax - Revenues 
Adjusted Budget     $2,001,000  
YTD Actual      $574,255  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   28.7%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
the same quarter of FY2023    $96,300  
 
Key Points: 
 Sales Tax revenue for the second quarter of FY2024 has shown an increase of roughly 

$96,300, or 20.2% when compared to the same quarter of FY2023.  
 Of the $574,255 sales tax revenue, roughly $246,900, or 42.9%, is generated from the TIF.   

E - 2 - 6



 

March 11, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                      Page 7 of 9 
 

 
 Note:  Sales tax revenue is based on the point of sale. 

 
Park & Stormwater Sales Tax - Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget     $1,561,240  
YTD Actual      $185,575  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   11.9%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2023    $(857)  
 
Key Points: 
 Expenditures appear to be within reason when compared to the 2nd quarter of FY2023.   

 
Overall, the expenditures as a percent of budget increased by 3.6% when compared to the same 
quarter of FY2023. 
 
Public Safety Sales Tax - Revenues 
Adjusted Budget     $2,291,000 
YTD Actual      $770,630  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   33.6%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to  
the same quarter of FY2023    $19,140  
 
Key Points: 
 A slight increase of roughly 2.5%; revenues appear to be within reason when compared to 

the 2nd quarter of FY2023.   
  

 Note:  Revenue is generated from pooled sales tax from other cities in the county and 
is based on per capita.  

 
Public Safety Sales Tax - Expenditures 
Adjusted Budget     $575,951  
YTD Actual      $266,613  
Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   46.3%  
Increase/ (Decrease) compared to 
the same quarter of FY2023    $111,640  
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in the expenditures is mainly from the purchase of two (2) Dodge Charger Police 

vehicles that occurred in the 2nd Quarter. 
 
Overall, the expenditures as a percent of budget increased by 15.0% when compared to the same 
quarter of FY2023.  
 
Councilmember Smotherson posed the following questions to Mr. Rose: 
Q.  Has any of the $246,900 from the TIF been designated to the 3rd Ward? 
A.  Typically, allocations occur mid-fiscal year, but I would have to review the budget to see if there 
was an allocation to the RPA-2 Fund.   
Q.  The pool tax is another revenue stream identified to fund RPA-2.  So, why were the 
proceeds from this tax not identified as a separate line item in the general fund revenues?   
A. The pool tax is structured as a transfer into the general fund, which he believes occurred in 
December of 2023.  So, here again, staff would have to review those revenues to determine the 
exact amounts transferred into the account.   

E - 2 - 7



 

March 11, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                      Page 8 of 9 
 

 
Q.  Can staff also provide how much of that revenue, if any, was allocated to the RPA-2 Fund?  
A.  As a part of the budget process Council approved a set amount that would be transferred to the 
RPA-2 Fund, and he believes that this distribution occurred at the end of the Fiscal Year. 
 
Councilmember Clay posed the following questions to Mr. Cole: 
Q.  Can you help me reconcile how the General Fund expenditures as a percent of the budget 
increased by 3.3% when there seems to have been a significant increase in expenditures 
throughout several of the City's departments?  
A.  The percentage rate for the same quarter in FY23 was 44.3%, so 3.3% is the difference between 
what the total expenditures were then, and what they are now, which is 48.7%.  All of this is detailed 
in the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures. 
Q.  So, this is a quarter-to-quarter comparison? 
A.  Correct. 
Q.  But with these expenditures being so much higher where are we to budget? 
A.  These numbers are for the first six months, and they compare the year to date.  So, the revenues 
as a percent of the budget show an increase of 4.6% when compared to the same quarter of FY23. 
Q.  So, we're not over budget? 
A.  No.  This is a comparison of what we had year to date in FY23, to what we have in the same 
quarter of FY24. 
 
Mayor Crow stated that even though there was a significant increase in the expenditures, there was 
also a significant decrease of 2.8 million dollars in expenditures for Parks and Public Works.  So, that 
may be what you're missing.  
 
Councilmember Clay thanked the Mayor for his clarification and noted that it was the piece he was 
missing.    

 
M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - (Roll call vote required on 2nd and 3rdreadings) 

None 
N. NEW BUSINESS 

Resolutions - (Voice vote required) 
 None 
Bills - (No vote required for the introduction and 1st reading) 
 None 

O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION - (Continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilmember Smotherson stated he would like to note for the record that the reason he had 
abstained from voting on Item L (1) is because his wife and son work for Stifel.   
 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION - (Roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal 
actions, causes of action, or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential 
or privileged communications between a public governmental body or its representatives or 
attorneys. 

E - 2 - 8



 

March 11, 2024 - Regular Session Minutes                      Page 9 of 9 
 

Councilmember Fuller moved to close the Regular Session and go into a Closed Session, it was 
seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Clay, Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember 
Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

 
S. ADJOURNMENT   

Mayor Crow thanked everyone for their participation and closed the Regular Session at 7:15 p.m. 
to go into a Closed Session on the second floor.  The Closed Session reconvened in an 
open session at 7:55 p.m. 

 
 

Kena Dean/ lr 
Acting City Clerk 

E - 2 - 9



E - 2 - 10



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20240325-01

Heman Park - Memorial Fountain Restoration

Darin Girdler, Director of Public Works Parks/All
Consent No

City Manager recommends approval of the proposal from Missouri Machinery & Engineering 
Company (The Pump Shop) in the amount of $91,100.00.

We will use funds from Parks Reserve for this important project.

$91,100.00

This is a sole source vendor project.  The scope of this project is beyond most companies in 
our region and the City has entrusted this company with most of the work on our fountain 
and pool pumps.

Memorial fountain was critically damaged in the flood of July 2022.  All of the electrical 
controls and pumps were damaged beyond repair.

Proposal.

Community Quality of Life Amenities

City Manager, Gregrory Rose 03/25/2024

K - 1 - 1



  

     PROPOSAL 

                                          ~THE PUMP SHOP ~ 
      MISSOURI MACHINERY & ENGINEERING COMPANY 

   4981 Fyler Ave. St. Louis, MO. 63139 
                                                TEL: (314) 231-9806, FX: (314) 231-7922 

PROPOSAL SUBMITTED TO: 

City of University City 
DATE     

01-12-2024 
STREET  

6801 Delmar Bvld. 
JOB NAME 

Herman Park Fountain 
University City, MO. 63130 JOB LOCATION 

 
POINT OF CONTACT 

Mike Warmbold 
DATE OF PLANS 

 
PHONE 

314-505-8624 
Cell 

314-985-8246 
PAYMENT  
 

           Net 30 
 

 

SHIPMENT/ DELIVERY 

 
                 TBD 

Authorized        MIKE HUFFMAN, PUMP SYSTEMS CONSULTANT 
Signature  

Note:  This proposal may be 
Withdrawn by us if not accepted within                 30                     days. 

 
 
    Missouri Machinery & Engineering Co. propose refurbishing the fountain at Herman Park.  
 
Vault Equipment 3-5 HP Whisperflo XF Pump 30” Sand Filter Misc. isolation valves 5 HP VSD 1hase to 3 phase UL Listed control 
panel with PLC, circuit breakers, LED lighting power supplies and DMX controls, wind controls, level controls 2” and 3” PVC Y-
Strainers 
Room light, dehumidifier, sump pump, GFI Outlet Motorized ball Valves/Butterfly Valves for sequencing Solenoid valve for autofill. 
  
Fountain Equipment, Large and small spray rings with larger orifices for minimal clogging 7 spray nozzles 
12 led lights (or more - upper and lower) 4 junction boxes, cord seal, potting compound, Overflow and drain fittings, Level control. 
Wind Sensor, Anti-vortex and diverters, Eyeball fittings 
  
Demolition: Remove all flooded equipment and controls. Carefully protect any usable penetrations, plumbing and electrical 
Clean out all debris, Remove fountain equipment from basins. 
  
Installation: Install new vault equipment, wiring, conduits, sch 80 piping. New penetrations and sealing as required 
Install new Fountain equipment in upper and lower basins, Install and program new control system with sequencing effects and light 
shows. Train personnel in operation and maintenance 
 
                                                 $ 91,100.00  This is a rough number because of the unknown underground. 
 

                     
                                             Optional: Basin and structure repair and waterproofing with a Pool Coating 

  
 
Mike Huffman 
Pump System Consultant 
 

              PRICE DOES NOT INCLUDE FREIGHT OR MISSOURI SALES TAX, IF APPLICABLE 
          NOTE:  Any work done beyond the scope described above will be quoted at our standard time and material rates, for approval of customer 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL – The above prices, specifications and 
conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  You are authorized 
to do the work as specified.  Payment will be made as outlined above. 

 

 
Signature:                                                                   Date: 

                                      
                                                 We also offer Laser Alignment, Field Balancing, Pump Rental, Flow Testing, 24/7 field service and Boom truck capability! 
                                                                                                   **** As of March 1, 2022, we will include a 2.5% processing fee for all credit card transactions**** 
 

                                            THE PUMP SHOP   MISSOURI MACHINERY & ENGINEERING, 4981 FYLER, ST. LOUIS, MO 63139. 
 

K - 1 - 2



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20240325-02

Police Department purchase of camera surveillance equipment to be used in Eastgate Park.

Chief Larry Hampton Police Department / Third
Consent No

City Manager recommends approval.

Upgrading to a camera surveillance system to capture illegal activity in Eastgate Park. The 
fiscal impact will be light and absorbed in UCPD budgetary annual licensing accounts. 

$25,608.10 #15-30-90-8200

CIP Surveillance Camera Equip #15-30-90 Camera Equip CIP

The Police Department is requesting the purchase of camera surveillance equipment for 
increased security measures in Eastgate Park.  .

Will Electronics is quoted for providing the department all build-up, support, and installation 
to these projects. Eastgate Park is quoted as $25,608.10. This will bring increased security 
measures to a prominent park here in University City, MO. 

Will Electronics quote and original CIP approved form attached 

Public Safety 
Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gregrory Rose 03/25/2024

K - 2 - 1



February 23, 2024 

QUOTE # 0123648 

Chief Larry Hampton 
City of University City Police Department 
6801 Delmar Blvd. 
University City, Mo  63130 

RE: Eastgate Park 

Dear Chief Hampton: 

We are pleased to submit this proposal for your consideration. 
 
OBJECTIVE: EASTGATE PARK – SOLAR POWERED SECURITY CAMERA WITH CELLULAR 
DATA & BATTERY BACK UP 
 
SOLUTION: We propose to provide and install the listed equipment, as follows. 
1. A new 20' service pole will be set up in the park as a fixed mounting location for the solar 
powered security camera. The pole will have an equipment enclosure as well as multi-image 
camera mounted at a height of 15 to 18' above grade. In addition, two (2) 320W solar panels will 
be mounted on the pole for charging the included battery backup system and  located for 
maximum solar exposure. 
2. The enclosure will contain a Cradlepoint data radio and will be provisioned by a SIM provided by 
the customer. 
3. The camera will be aimed, focused, and enrolled into the customer's Genetec Security Center 
system. 
 
* This is a design/build estimate with information provided by the customer and physical survey. 

 
 1 POWER SENTRY SITE MONITOR 6000 (DUAL 320W SOLAR PANELS)  

*  POWER SENTRY CONTROL SECTION 
 * 3-BATTERY SECTION / LITHIUM 20AH / SNAKE-EYE SECURITY BIT(S) 
 * FIXED MULTI-SENSOR 8MP W/IR AXIS P3737-PLE CAMERA 
 * 12VDC HI POE 35W INJECTOR(S) / CAMERA SD CARD 
 * 8 PORT L2 UNMANAGED SWITCH  / PANEL MOUNT & CRATE 
 1 GENETEC GSC/OMNICAST PROFESSIONAL CAMERA LICENSE 
 1 GENETEC ADVANTAGE PROFESSIONAL CONNECTION 1YR SMA 
 1 SUBCONTRACTOR SERVICE POLE SET INSTALLATION 

$25,608.10  TOTAL INVESTMENT AMOUNT 

K - 2 - 2



 

ACCEPTANCE 
When signed by the Customer, this proposal, including all attachments and Additional Terms and Conditions, 
will constitute a contract and a purchase order. 

ACCEPTED BY DATE 

PRINTED NAME TITLE PO # _______________ ___________________ _________________________ 

_____________________ ________________________________________ 

 
1
5
1
.
0
0 

 
1
2
4
.

0
0 

 
1
4
7
.
0
0 

***PROPOSAL NOTES*** 
1. Customer will provide all AC power required. 
2. Customer will provide all network connections required. 
3. All work will be performed during normal business hours: Monday – Friday, 8:00 am – 5:00 pm. 
4. The new equipment listed is covered by a one-year warranty, parts and labor included, with 
on-site service. 
5. This proposal does not include any permits, documentation costs, licensing fees or other fees 
that may be required by the local governing authorities. 
6. This proposal is valid for a period of 60 days. 
7. A 30% down payment is required upon acceptance of this proposal. 
8. Financing options are available. 
9. Any additions or alterations to the work described herein will be done at additional cost, pending 
prior customer approval. 

At Will Electronics, we take great pride in the quality of products and service we provide. We look 
forward to being of service to you and the City of University City in the future. If you have any 
questions, feel free to contact me. If this proposal is acceptable, please sign as indicated above 
and return. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
Scott Middleton 
 
WILL ELECTRONICS 

K - 2 - 3



 

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

The additional terms and conditions which follow are in addition to the terms and conditions of the proposal, purchase order, contract or agreement (the "Agreement") by and between WILL 
ELECTRONICS, INC. (“WEI”) and any other party thereto (individually or collectively referred to as “Customer”) to which these additional terms and conditions are attached to or part of.  In the 
event of any conflict between these additional terms and conditions and those of the proposal, purchase order, contract or agreement to which they are attached, these additional terms and 
conditions shall control. 
 
1. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT, PROGRAMMING, DRAWINGS AND OWNERSHIP 

A. Design Development.  Customer and WEI have together developed or will develop the design and specifications for the Work.  When Customer has accepted or approved the 
design and specifications, the sole and final responsibility for the design and specifications shall be Customer's.  WEI shall have no liability to Customer for any loss or damage claimed against or 
incurred by Customer or any employee, agent or licensee of Customer because of any defect or alleged defect in the design or specifications or the failure of the equipment or the Work to perform 
as desired or anticipated by Customer. 
 B. Programming.  Security system programming is an essential element of the systems operation and performance.  Customer acknowledges and agrees that security system 
programming is an ever-changing process, and in significant part subject to Customer’s day-to-day and other business operations and parameters and the changes or modifications to them and, as 
such, WEI is not responsible for programming or product malfunctions caused in whole or in part by others including Customer.  
 
2. LIMITED WARRANTY; EXCLUSIONS AND DISCLAIMERS 
 A. To the extent not otherwise warranted pursuant to an applicable manufacturer’s warranty, WEI warrants all Equipment and installation labor rendered as part of the Work against 
defects in materials and labor for a period of twelve (12) months (the "Warranty Period") from the date of substantial completion of the installation; provided, however, no warranty is made as to, 
and there is specifically excluded from the warranty, any and all expendable supplies, equipment and parts, or any portions of the Work which have been misused, abused, not used in the manner 
intended, neglected, or damaged by an act of God or altered, modified, or manipulated in any manner by Customer or a third party.  Any defect in the installation during the Warranty Period will be 
repaired or replaced at the option of WEI.  Any shipping charges in connection with a repair or replacement shall be the responsibility of Customer.  The repair or replacement of the Equipment 
shall constitute Customer's sole remedy against WEI.  
 B. WEI MAKES NO OTHER OR FURTHER WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO INSTALLATION LABOR, MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT OR ANY OTHER PORTION OF THE WORK 
OTHER THAN THE FOREGOING WARRANTY AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 
 C. IN NO EVENT SHALL WEI BE LIABLE TO CUSTOMER OR ANY THIRD PARTY FOR SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES OR FOR 
LOST PROFITS, LOST SALES, INJURY OR DEATH TO PERSON OR PROPERTY OR ANY OTHER CAUSE AS A RESULT OF A DEFECT IN LABOR, EQUIPMENT OR OTHER SUPPLIES OR 
MATERIALS WITH RESPECT TO ANY ITEM FURNISHED UNDER THE AGREEMENT, MALFUNCTION OR NONFUNCTION OF ANY SYSTEM, WRONGFUL PERFORMANCE OF OR FAILURE 
TO PERFORM ANY ACTS INCLUDED IN THE WORK, TRANSPORTATION DELAYS OR BREACH OF WARRANTY.   
 D. Customer acknowledges that no warranty, representation, or statement by any representative of WEI not stated herein shall be binding.  This writing, and the document or documents 
attached hereto or of which this writing is a part, if any, constitutes the final expression of the parties’ agreement and is a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement. 
 
3. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
 A. The parties understand and agree that: (a) the Work is intended to constitute or be part of a security system designed to reduce risk of loss for the Customer; (b) Customer has 
selected, accepted and approved the Scope of Work after considering and balancing the levels of protection afforded by various types of systems and services available to it and the related costs 
of them; (c) neither WEI nor any person engaged by WEI to perform any portion of the Work shall be construed to be an insurer of the person or property of Customer, its employees, agents, 
contractors, assigns, bailors, customers, invitees, trespassers or any other person at the location(s) where the work is performed (the “Location(s)”; (d) the Price and Payment Terms are based 
solely on the cost and value of WEI providing the Work and are unrelated to the value of property of Customer or others located at the Location(s); (e) the Price and Payment Terms do not 
contemplate any payment being made or consideration being given to WEI for any guarantee, warranty or insuring agreement by any one or more of them to Customer with respect to the person or 
property of anyone; (f) WEI MAKES NO GUARANTEE OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND THAT THE WORK (INCLUDING ANY MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT SUPPLIED AS PART OF THE 
WORK) WILL AVERT OR PREVENT OCCURRENCES OR CONSEQUENCES THEREFROM WHICH THE WORK IS DESIGNED TO DETECT OR AVERT. 
 B. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section or for whatever reason, WEI should be found liable for personal injury/wrongful death or property loss or damage caused by a 
failure to perform by WEI or the failure of any materials or equipment in any respect whatsoever or a court of proper jurisdiction determines the limitations on warranties are inapplicable, Customer 
agrees that the aggregate liability of WEI under or with respect to the Agreement, the Work to be performed under, and any warranty provided pursuant to, the Agreement, shall be limited to a sum 
equal to the lesser of (i) one-tenth (1/10) of the total Price to be paid by Customer under the Agreement, (ii) if the Price is to be paid in monthly payments or installments (other than progress 
payments), an amount equal to six (6) monthly payments, or (iii) Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00), and this liability shall be exclusive, and that the provisions of this subsection shall apply if loss or 
damage, irrespective of cause or origin, results directly or indirectly to persons or property, from performance or nonperformance of the Work, from breach of warranty, or from negligence, active or 
otherwise of WEI. 
 C. No suit or action shall be brought against WEI more than one (1) year after the substantial completion of the Work. 
 
4. INDEMNIFICATION 

A. When Customer ordinarily has the property of others in its custody, or the Work extends to the protection of the person or property of others, Customer shall indemnify, save, 
defend and hold harmless WEI from and against all claims brought by parties other than the parties to the Agreement.  This provision shall apply to all claims regardless of cause, including the 
performance or  failure to perform by WEI, and including without limitation, defects in products or system design, installation, repair service, monitoring, operation or non-operation of materials or 
equipment, whether based upon negligence, active or passive, express or implied contract or warranty, contribution or indemnification or strict or product liability; provided, however, Customer shall 
have no duty to indemnify in the case of gross negligence or willful misconduct by WEI, its employees, agents or assigns.  Customer agrees to indemnify WEI against, and to defend and hold WEI 
harmless from any action for subrogation which may be brought against WEI by any insurer or insurance company or its agents or assigns including the payment of all damages, expenses, costs 
and reasonable attorney's fees.   

 
5. REMEDIES 
 A. Ownership of Property Until Payment.  Where material, equipment or other property are being sold, leased, or licensed to Customer as part of the Work, title and ownership of all of 
the material, equipment and other property shall remain in WEI or until full payment of the Price has been made or throughout the term of the lease or the license, as applicable. 
 B. Security Interest.  If a provision of law prohibits the retention of title and ownership of the property by WEI where the property is being sold to Customer, Customer grants to WEI a lien 
and security interest in and to any and all materials, equipment and other property supplied by WEI under the Agreement (whenever title or ownership have passed to Customer) to secure each 
and every payment and obligation due WEI from Customer under the Agreement. 
 C. Liquidated Damages.  In the case of a breach of the Agreement by Customer and termination by WEI, or upon premature cancellation or termination by Customer: 
a. If the Agreement is terminated prior to completion of the Work, Customer shall be obligated to pay for all portions of the Work actually performed and property delivered or ordered by WEI up 
to the date of termination plus any other sum or amount provided in the Agreement.  
 
The parties agree it would be very difficult, if not impossible, to ascertain actual damages for the breach or premature cancellation or termination by Customer, and they further agree that in the 
event of a breach by Customer and termination by WEI or premature cancellation or termination by Customer, Customer shall immediately pay to WEI (and WEI shall accept) all charges then due 
WEI and in addition, as and for liquidated damages and not as a penalty, a sum equal to sixty percent (60%) of any future charges which would have been paid to WEI by Customer under the 
terms of the Agreement if there had been no cancellation or termination of the Agreement by Customer or WEI, and WEI would have completed the Work. 
 
 

K - 2 - 4



K - 2 - 5



K - 2 - 6



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

REQUESTED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20250325-03

FY2023 Supplemental Agreement (CDBG)

Brooke A. Smith City Manager's Office
Consent No

City Manager recommends approval 

None

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

This agreement allows for the city's participation in the Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) Fund through St. Louis County. 

Each year our City received an allocation of CDBG funding.  In order to receive these funds, 
we are required to enter into an annual Supplemental Cooperation agreement with the Office 
of Community Development.  

Letter from St. Louis County Human Services  
FY2023 Supplemental Cooperation Agreement

City Manager, Gregrory Rose March 25, 2024

K - 3 - 1



K - 3 - 2



K - 3 - 3



K - 3 - 4



K - 3 - 5



K - 3 - 6



K - 3 - 7



K - 3 - 8



K - 3 - 9



K - 3 - 10



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20240325-01

City Manager General Updates

Administration - All
City Manager's Report

General updates as provided by the City Manager.

City Manager, Gregrory Rose 3/25/2024

L - 1 - 1



L - 1 - 2



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20240325-02

EDRST Applications 

Brooke A. Smith Economic Development 
City Manager's Report Yes 

City Manager concurs with the the EDRST Board's recommendation and recommends 
approval.  

The EDRST Fund Reserves will be decreased by $335,950.00

335,950 11.45.78.6040

Fund 11 Fund Reserves Fund 11 Fund Reserves 

The EDRST Board considered 22 Applications for EDRST Funding.  Of those 22, the Board 
voted to recommend funding for 11 of those applications.  The total amount of funds 
awarded is $335,950.00

The EDRST Board considered 22 Applications from local businesses for EDRST Funding. Of 
those 22 Applications, 17 proposed projects were presented to the EDRST Board. After 
receiving those presentations, the EDRST Board voted to recommend approval of funding for 
11 projects totaling $335,950.00.  Attached is a Summary of Projects for those invited to 
present, which includes a Score, Staff Recommendation to the EDRST Board and the EDRST 
Board's recommendation. The scoring matrix is also included for your review. 

Summary of Projects 
Scoring Matrix 
Applications

Economic Development  
Prudent Fiscal Management 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose March 25, 2024

L - 2 - 1



L - 2 - 2



Summary of Projects – Scored and Recommenda�ons 

Ar�sans in the Loop 

Amount Requested:  $63,900 

Proposed Project:  Art Forward would be located at 6513 Delmar (spaced currently owned by Joe 
Edwards) and would host monthly art openings, ar�st led workshops, retail artworks sales, and poten�al 
art space rental.  

Location:  The Loop  

Score – 7 

Staff Recommenda�on:  Staff recommends funding be denied at this �me.  While this is a viable project, 
there are too many unknowns.  For example, a site to host this project has not been secured.   

EDRST Recommenda�on:  The EDRST Board voted to deny funding for this project as it deemed it a bit 
premature.  Applicant invited to reapply at a later date.   

 

iNeighborhoods – Bear Studios 

Amount Requested: $25,250 

Proposed Project: University City Community Browser.  Cameras in the city the loop that can be accessed 
via mobile phones by those visi�ng the loop before they arrive or a�er they depart.  Expected to 
increase community safety.  (No physical address, camera currently located at 6900 Delmar)  

Location:  The Loop  

Score – 3 

Staff Recommenda�on:  Staff recommends funding be denied. This project does not align with your 
Funding Priority Guidelines.    

EDRST Recommenda�on:  The EDRST Board voted to deny funding for this project as it does not align 
with the Board’s Funding Priority Guidelines.  Specifically, there was a concern that this project does not 
support business development or iden�fy opportuni�es for working with businesses in University City.   

 

Midwest Associa�on of Farmers Market 

Amount Requested: $9,500 

Proposed Project: The U City Farmers Market is reques�ng funding to increase marke�ng for their Winter 
Farmers Market. They are also seeking addi�onal funding to host special events in the Spring, including a 
new culinary series, spring pe�ng farm, and Earth Day Celebra�on.   

Location:  The Loop  

Midwest Associa�on of Farmers Market  

L - 2 - 3



Amount Requested: $17,000 

Proposed Project:  Con�nua�on of the Wednesday Market that was introduced in FY23, which has been 
very successful.   

Location: The Loop 

Score – 6 

Staff Recommenda�on:  Staff recommends funding not to exceed $26,500.  This project meets your 
Funding Priori�es Guidelines, and the Farmers Market has become a staple in the U City community and 
con�nues to draw customers to the Delmar Loop.  

EDRST Recommenda�on: The EDRST Board voted to approve funding for this project, not to exceed 
$26,500.   

 

Meramac Capital  

Amount Requested: $150,000 

Proposed Project:  Renova�on of 6307/6309 Delmar Blvd.  (Formerly Three Kings).  Restore the building 
a�er the fire that occurred.   

Location: The Loop  

Score – 10 

Staff Recommenda�on:  This project meets your Funding Priority Guidelines and scored well on your 
evalua�on criteria.  However, staff is hesitant to recommend funding this project as this building was 
insured and those insurance proceeds were retained by the previous owner.  Staff worries this would set 
an unfavorable precedent.  For this reason, staff recommends funding be denied.  

EDRST Recommenda�on:  The EDRST Board voted to deny funding for this project.  The Board shared 
staff’s concerns about the precedent that gets set by funding a project where insurance proceeds were 
received and not reinvested in the property, no�ng that the new owner purchased the building without 
being aware of this program and thus had to have some sort of business plan for rehabilita�on.   

 

Hatchet Haus 

Amount Requested: $153,042 

Proposed Project: Entertainment facility, axe throwing. Facility located at 6662-C Delmar Blvd.   

Location:  The Loop  

Score – 8 

Staff Recommenda�on:  This project meets your Funding Priority Guidelines and scored well on your 
evalua�on criteria.  However, staff is hesitant to recommend funding on this project.  During the 

L - 2 - 4



presenta�on, the applicant stated that a lease had not been executed, only a leter of intent.  There was 
no discussion about a possible tenant allowance for improvements by the owner.  Staff also noted that the 
projected budget that was submited was not very detailed, with a line item of “Direct Costs” listed at 
$77,000 with no details as to what those entail.  For this reason, staff recommends funding be denied.  

EDRST Recommenda�on:   EDRST voted to deny funding at this �me.  While they felt the project was 
viable, they thought the applica�on was premature.  The tenant had not executed a lease at the �me of 
this mee�ng.     

 

Mannequins Project 

Amount Requested: $20,000 

Proposed Project: Art installa�on along Delmar. *** The Mannequins Project received $25,000 last year 
for this project and is set to receive the same amount in FY24.  This request is for an addi�onal $20,000, 
which would bring the total award to $45,000.  The primary reason for the increase request is to adver�se 
in other markets with the hope of increasing tourism.  The Mannequins Project has started to receive 
na�onal aten�on and requests to do similar installa�ons in other ci�es.  Instead of doing this, the 
applicant would like to market the U City installa�on in other ci�es to try and atract tourists.  

Location: The Loop  

Score – 7 

Staff Recommenda�on:  Staff recommends funding be denied.  While adver�sing does fall within you 
Funding Priority Guidelines, this project proposes to use U City tax dollars outside of U City without a 
guaranteed return on the investment via tourism dollars.   

EDRST Recommenda�on:  EDRST Board voted to approve funding, not to exceed $20,000.  

 

SHED 

Amount Requested: $16,250 

Proposed Project: Partnership between SHED and U City Hight School to provide high school students with 
exposure to construc�on, real estate development, and the arts.  Bridge gaps by offering viable career 
op�ons and training to students.   

Location:  City-wide  

Score – 7 

Staff Recommenda�on:  Staff recommends awarding funds not to exceed $16,250.  This is a viable 
project that aligns with your funding priority guidelines.  

EDRST Recommenda�on:  The board voted to approve funding, not to exceed $16,250.   

 

L - 2 - 5



Well U Café  

Amount Requested:  $77,200 

Proposed Project:  Redevelopment of the property at 6500 Etzel for use as a café, co-working kitchen, 
and private event space.  A food trailer is also part of this proposed project.  

Location: City-wide  

Score – 12 

Staff Recommenda�on:  Staff recommends funding not to exceed $77,200, pending approval of the 
project by Planning and Zoning.  This project meets your Funding Priority Guidelines and scored well on 
your evalua�on criteria.  

EDRST Recommenda�on:  EDRST Board voted to approve funding, not to exceed $77,200, pending the 
approval of the project by Planning & Zoning and City Council.  A CUP will be needed for this project.  

 

LSBD – The LSBD has submited a total of eight applica�ons for a total request of $242,500.  This is in 
addi�on to the $275,000 they were awarded for their annual events.  

Each application is individually scored but there is one staff recommendation.  

LSBD  

Amount Requested: $30,000 

Proposed Project: Adver�sing campaigns to promote local shopping and dining.  

Location: The Loop  

Score – 6 

 

LSBD 

Amount Requested - $10,000 

Proposed Project: Re-paint and enhance the exis�ng bike racks in the Loop.  

Location: The Loop  

Score – 1 

 

LSBD  

Amount Requested:  $25,000 

Proposed Project: Expanded Outdoor Dining Buildouts for businesses in the Loop.   

L - 2 - 6



Location: The Loop  

Score – 3 

 

LSBD  

Amount Requested: $15,000 

Proposed Project:  Power washing and cleaning Delmar Blvd (the actual street)  

Location: The Loop  

Score – 2 

 

LSBD 

Amount Requested:  $90,000 

Proposed Project:  Replace trash receptacles and recycling bins in the Loop.   

Location:  The Loop  

Score – 3 

  

LSBD 

Amount Requested: $15,000  

Proposed Project: Trash Pickup and cleaning in the Loop.  

Location: The Loop  

Score - 2 

 

LSBD 

Amount Requested:  $6,000 

Proposed Project: Paint u�lity boxes on Delmar.  

Location:  The Loop  

Score – 2 

 

LSBD 

Amount Requested:  $25,000 

L - 2 - 7



Proposed Project:  Repairs to the Walk of Fame  

Location:  The Loop 

Score – 5 

 

Staff Recommenda�on:  Staff recommends funding not to exceed $242,500.  Collec�vely, these projects 
meet the overall strategic goals and objec�ves laid out in your Funding Priority Guidelines.  The Loop is 
one of the main atrac�ons in University City and these projects will beau�fy and promote The Loop, 
con�nuing to draw customers to the various businesses.  

EDRST Recommenda�on:  The Board voted to approve funding, not to exceed $242,500.  

L - 2 - 8



Economic Development Retail Sales Tax - FY24 Requests - Staff analysis

Scoring 
Little or no alignment with criteria 0
Moderate alignment with criteria 1
Strong alignment with criteria 2

Applicant Project Title Location Funding Request
Alignment with 
Comp Plan

Ability to 
leverage 
additional 
funding

Ability to be long-
lasting and value 
added

Ability to 
redevelop vacant 
properties

Potential to act 
as catalyst for 
additional 
develop. 

Artisans in the Loop Art Forward Unknown $63,900.00 1 0 1 2 1
iNeighborhoods - Bear Studios Community Browser 6900 Delmar $25,250.00 1 0 1 0 0
Mermac Capital Renovation/Repairs to 6307/6309 Delmar Blvd 6307/6309 Delmar $150,000.00 1 2 2 1 1
Hatchet Haus Renovation/Repairs to 6662-C Delmar Blvd 6662-C Delmar $153,042.00 1 2 1 1 1
Audrey Jones/Mannequins Project Mannequins Project Delmar and Olive $20,000.00 2 2 2 0 0
SHED SHED Youth Career Development Third Ward $16,250.00 2 2 1 1 0
Well U Café LLC Well U Café  - Structure Replacement/Renovation 6500 Etzel $77,200.00 2 2 2 2 1
Midwest Association of Farmers Market U City Farmers Market - Ads and Wednesday Market Delmar Loop $26,500.00 1 2 2 0 0
LSBD Advertising Delmar Loop $30,000.00 1 0 1 1 0
LSBD Paint Bicycle Racks Delmar Loop $10,000.00 1 0 0 0 0
LSBD Expanded Outdoor Dining Buildouts Delmar Loop $25,000.00 1 0 1 0 0
LSBD Powerwashing Streets Delmar Loop $15,000.00 1 0 0 0 0
LSBD Trash Receptacles Delmar Loop $90,000.00 1 0 1 0 0
LSBD Trash Pickup and Cleaning Delmar Loop $15,000.00 1 0 0 0 0
LSBD Utility Box Painting Delmar Loop $6,000.00 1 0 0 0 0
LSBD Repairs to Walk of Fame Delmar Loop $25,000.00 1 0 2 0 0

L - 2 - 9



Potential to 
provide 
employment 
opportunity

Appropriate 
allignment of 
business fit 
target area SCORE

FY24 
Recommended 
Funding - STAFF

1 1 7 $0.00
0 1 3 $0.00
1 2 10 $0.00
1 1 8 $0.00
0 1 7 $0.00
1 0 7 $16,250.00
1 2 12 $77,200.00
0 1 6 $26,500.00
1 2 6 $30,000.00
0 0 1 $10,000.00
0 1 3 $25,000.00
0 1 2 $15,000.00
0 1 3 $90,000.00
0 1 2 $15,000.00
0 1 2 $6,000.00
0 2 5 $25,000.00

TOTAL $335,950.00

Available Funds $1,556,645.00

L - 2 - 10



L - 2 - 11



L - 2 - 12



L - 2 - 13



L - 2 - 14



L - 2 - 15



L - 2 - 16



L - 2 - 17



L - 2 - 18



L - 2 - 19



L - 2 - 20



L - 2 - 21



L - 2 - 22



L - 2 - 23



L - 2 - 24



L - 2 - 25



L - 2 - 26



L - 2 - 27



L - 2 - 28



L - 2 - 29



L - 2 - 30



L - 2 - 31



L - 2 - 32



L - 2 - 33



L - 2 - 34



L - 2 - 35



L - 2 - 36



L - 2 - 37



L - 2 - 38



L - 2 - 39



L - 2 - 40



L - 2 - 41



L - 2 - 42



L - 2 - 43



L - 2 - 44



L - 2 - 45



L - 2 - 46



L - 2 - 47



L - 2 - 48



L - 2 - 49



L - 2 - 50



L - 2 - 51



L - 2 - 52



L - 2 - 53



L - 2 - 54



L - 2 - 55



L - 2 - 56



L - 2 - 57



L - 2 - 58



L - 2 - 59



L - 2 - 60



L - 2 - 61



L - 2 - 62



L - 2 - 63



L - 2 - 64



L - 2 - 65



L - 2 - 66



L - 2 - 67



L - 2 - 68



L - 2 - 69



L - 2 - 70



L - 2 - 71



L - 2 - 72



L - 2 - 73



L - 2 - 74



L - 2 - 75



L - 2 - 76



L - 2 - 77



L - 2 - 78



L - 2 - 79



L - 2 - 80



L - 2 - 81



L - 2 - 82



L - 2 - 83



L - 2 - 84



L - 2 - 85



L - 2 - 86



L - 2 - 87



L - 2 - 88



L - 2 - 89



L - 2 - 90



L - 2 - 91



L - 2 - 92



L - 2 - 93



L - 2 - 94



L - 2 - 95



L - 2 - 96



L - 2 - 97



L - 2 - 98



L - 2 - 99



L - 2 - 100



L - 2 - 101



L - 2 - 102



L - 2 - 103



L - 2 - 104



L - 2 - 105



L - 2 - 106



L - 2 - 107



L - 2 - 108



L - 2 - 109



L - 2 - 110



L - 2 - 111



L - 2 - 112



L - 2 - 113



L - 2 - 114



L - 2 - 115



L - 2 - 116



L - 2 - 117



L - 2 - 118



L - 2 - 119



L - 2 - 120



L - 2 - 121



 

 

Applicant:            

Project Title:          

Funding Requested:         

Loca�on:           

 

Scoring 

Litle to no alignment with criteria   0 

Moderate alignment with criteria  1  

Strong alignment with criteria   2  

 

Alignment with Comprehensive Plan      

Ability to leverage addi�onal funding      

Ability to be long-las�ng and value added      

Ability to redevelop vacant proper�es      

Poten�al to act as catalyst for addi�onal development    

Poten�al to provide employment opportunity    

Appropriate alignment of business fit target area      

L - 2 - 122


	E1 - 2024-03-11 Draft Study Minutes - Summer Camp.pdf
	Mayor Crow thanked Mr. Girdler for his presentation and adjourned the Study Session at 6:20 p.m.
	Kena Dean / lr
	Acting City Clerk

	K1 All - Memorial Fountain FEMA.pdf
	COPY

	K2 - All Park Camera - Cover Form for Eastgate Park.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	K3 All- FY23 CDBG Supp Agreement.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	L1  - City Mgr General Updates - Cover.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	L2 All- EDRST Funds FY24  Reduced.pdf
	FY24 EDRST Staff Recommendation Matrix.pdf
	Sheet1

	Blank Page
	L2 Cover Form- EDRST Funds FY24.pdf
	COPY





